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SWAPNA PRAcAn HOUSNG

BOARD'S I{EPORT

Your Directors are pleased to present the Sixteenth Annual Report of your Company

together with the Audited Statement of Accounts and the Auditors' Report f or the financial

year ended, March 31,, 2024.

1. Financial Results

Amount in Rs.

For the year ended

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

(8,60,0s,878.74) (2,43,86,474.16)

Nct Cunent fax Iixpense

(2,43,86,474.1.6)

Deferred Tax

I Transfer to Statutory Reserve

l'rofit / (Loss) after Tax

2. State of Affairs

'l'he ttallyilrg Cry has been "Onwards and Upwards", in spite of the varied challenges thrown
at thc companv - a. Low Levels of Intermittent Cash Surplus b. Fund Crunch at Partner's end

c. Vir:issitudes of Partner-driven Relationships d. Maneuvering business priorities to meet the

regulations, arrd last but not the least e. The ever-present changing field dynamics because of
seasons, competitors and employee movements. Despite the passage of time, or rather despite

the ilcrcase of the I)l,Ds, thc company continues to collect from the Bad Book, including that
of incrcased collections from written off portfolio (FY 24 - Rs 4.29 Cr vs FY23 - Rs 3.75 Cr). The

vear saw the adclitiorl of thc 3rd partner, Northern Arc Limited. Your company will act as a BC

(llusiuess Corrcspondent), wherein single case with ticket sizes of up to Rs 50 lakhs can be

sourced, thert:b1' ailowing us to increase our AUM (Asset Under Management) at a rapid pace.
'I',he absolute amount of NPA as of Mar 31, 2024 at Its 15.36 Cr is less than the pre-Covid figure
of Rs 16.01 Cr (lvlar 3'1,2020), however on account of the sharp contraction in the own Book

I'ortfolio (the AUM though has been maintained more or less in the vicinity of Rs 45 Cr, over

the last two financial years - on account of increased off-book disbursements) the NPA
pcrcentages continue to be high. The coJending porffolio (presently constituting 7a th of the

AUM) in it.s 3rd year continues to be excellent with not a single account having moved to 1st

tlucket - all IIMIs under the coJending program arc being collected in that month ilself. On

account of the Stamp l)uty being significantly higher in the state of Odisha, and on account of

the comparlv not having a blemish-free on-ground reputation, the Company is finding it

G
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'lhe summarized financial results for the year ended March 31,2024, are as under:

l'articular

(8,60,05,878.11)

Profit / (Loss) before Tax



tougher to make quick headway, however, we are confident that we will be able to build a

good team and make a successful foray.'I.he company needs to generate revenues at a faster

pace, however the lion's share of revenue in off-book disbursements belong to the partrrers.

Simultaneously, given the limited geographical area of operations being permitted by the

partners, the company is unable to fully harness the potential of either its physical
infrastructure or its human resources - wherein they can double up both as collection & sales

agent. Therefore, while the company has moved onwards, it is yet to get onto the path of
upwards as the company is yet to achieve the elusive goal of being profitable.

3. Review of Business Operations

During the year under review, the Company has earned Rs.613.99 lakhs as Revenue from

Operations and Rs.444.71 lakhs from Other Income. The Profit/(Loss) before tax for the

year has been Rs. (860.05) lakhs as against Rs. (243.86) lakhs during the previous financial

year.

As per Sectior-r 29C (1) of National Housing Bank Act, 1987 the Company is required to

kansfer at least 20% of its net profit every year to a reserve before a dividend is declared.

During the year no amount is required to be transferred to the Special Resewe.

For transfer to reserves in terms of section 134(3)0 of the Companies Act, 2013, for the

financial vear ended March 31, 2024 your Directors proPose to transfer Nil amount to the

General Reserve of the company and the amount of Rs. (8,60,05,878.14) will be transferred to

Profit & Loss account.

7. Deposit

Your Company is registered as a non-deposit taking Housing Finance Company with

National Housing Bank and hence does not accept any deposits. No deposits were accepted

from the public in the financial year ended March 31, 2024-
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4. Share Capital

During the year under review, there is no change in the Authorised Share Capital and Paid-

up Share Capital of the company.

5. Dividend

Your Directors do not recommend for any dividend for the year ended MarchSl',2024.

6. Transfer of amount(s) to Reserve (s)

ts--
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8. Particulars of Loans , Guarantees or Investments bv Companv

The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees attracting the plovisions

of Section 1U6 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not made any Investment during the financial year 2023-24. Therefore, no

need to comply with the provisions of Section 186 of the Company Act, 2013.

9. Loan from Directors ot their Relatives

During the year under review, the Company has not received any loan from the Directors.
However, the Company has received declaration as required under Rule 2 (1) (c) with respect

to the loan received from relative of Mr. Prashant Banerjee, Whole-time Directors.

10. Credit Rating

CAIIE rated your Company as "CARE B, Stable (Single B)" on December, 25,2024.

11. Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 13a(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on

March 31, 2024 is available on the Company's website at -

https:.//sphm.co.i n /sphm/assets/upIoad,/Annual Return for the vear 2023 2024.pdf?sph
ln

During the vear under review, Mr. A. Ramesh Kumar vacated his office as Director of the

Companv w.e.f. June 18,2023 Pursuant to Section 167(1\(b) of the Companies Act 2013.

Further, Mr. Prashant Baneriee was appointed as Whole-time Director at the Annual
General Meeting held on September 8,2023.

'I'he Composition of the Board as on March 31,2O24 was-

I

Address Designation Date of
Appointment

Mukul Gulati 70 East 96th Street, #4A, NY

10128

Nominee
Director

February 17,

2021,

2 Vijaya Kumar
Chowti
Shivananda

No. 1.295, Srinidhi, 14th

Cross, Opp. Sundar Mahal,

2nd Phase, Girinagar,

Bengaluru, Karnataka 560085

Independent
Director

December 30,

202-l

Sr.

No.

Name
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Prashant

Banerjee

138-A, C/o LTCOL S K
Panda, Eshwarpuri Colony,

Sainikpuri, Hyderabad

500094

Whole-time
Director &
CEO

February 13,

2023

12. Kev Manaeerial Personnel

During the period under review, no Key Managerial Personnel was appointed.

Below are the Key Managerial Personnel as on March 31, 2024 -

*Ms. Meenakshi Dholwani has resigned from the Company w.e.f July 31, 2024

13. Details of Board meetings

During the year, 5 (Five) Board meetings were held on -

1,. Jwe9,2023

2. July18,2023

3. September 29,2023

4. December 1,4,2023

5. February 1.9,2024

Sr.No. Name Address Designation
Date of
Appointment

I
*Meenakshi

Dholwani

Block No. 20, Near Baba,

Hardasram Dharamshala,

Jaripatka, Nagpur,

Maharashtra - M0014

Chief Financial
Officer June 18, 2022

2
Megha

Mohunta

Shora Kothi, Kamptee

Road, Teka Naka,

Uppalwadi, Nagpur,

Maharashtra- 440026

Company
Secretary

February 1,4,

2019
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Sr
No

Name of the
Director

Director
Since

Capa

-ity
DIN No. of

Board
meetings

No.
of
other
Direc
torsh
ips

uneration No. of
shares held
in and
convertible
instruments
in the
NBFC

Held Atte
nde
d

Salary
and other
Compens
ation

Sitfing
fees

Com
missi
on

1 Ramesh
Kumar
Aravamuthan

5rh ]an,
2009 tor

5 0 1 40,87,482

2 Mukul Gulati 17th Feb,
2027

Nom
inee
Direc
tor

00745L83 5 5 15 4,00,00
0

NIL

3 Viiaya Kumar
Chowti
thivananda

30h Dec,
2021

Inde
pend
ent
Direc
tor

0743M96 5 5 3 4,50,00

0

NIL

Prashant
Banerjee

13th Feb,
2023

Whol
e-
time
Direc
tor

09786756 5 5 0 79,94,644 NIL

1. Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted various Committees to suPPo the Boatd in discharging its

responsibilities. The Company has constituted the following committees in accordance

with the provisions of the Act viz.

a. Audit Committee
b. Risk Management Committee

c. ALCO Committee

d. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

e. InJormation Technology Strategy Committee

f. Debt Approval Committee

Mc.

?z
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a

The Board at the time of the constitution of each committee fixes the terms of reference and

aiso delegates powers from time to time.

Audit Committee - During the year the Audit Committee met on June 9,2023, July 18,

2023, September 29, 2023, December '14,2023 and February 19,2024.

Sr
No.

Name of the
Director

Member of
Committee
Since

No. of meetings of
the committee

No. of
shares
held in
the
NBFC

Held Attended

I *Mr. Ramesh
Kumar
Aravamuthan

78-01.-2022 Non-
executive

1 0 40,87,482

2 Mr. Mukul
Gulati

78-0't-2022 Nominee 5 5 NIL

3 Mr. Vijaya
Kumar Chowti
Shivananda

1.8-01.-2022 Independent :) ) NIL

*Mr. A. I(amesh Kumar vacated his office as Director of the Company w.e.f. June 18,2023

b. Risk Management Committee - During the year the Risk Management Committee had

met on July 1,8, 2023 and December 1'4, 2023.

Sr
No.

Name of the
Director

Member of
Committee
Since

Capacity No. of meetings of
the committee

No. of
shares
held in
the
NBFC

Held Attended

1 Mr. Mukul
Gulati

2 Mr. Vijaya
Kumar Chowti
Shivananda

I

1.7-06-2022 Nominee 2 2 NII-

1.7-06-2022 Independent 2 2 NIL

3 Mr. Prashant
Baneriee

12-07-2023 Executive 2 2 NIL

*Mr. A. Ramesh Kumar vacated his office as Director of the Company w.e.f. June 18,2023

c. ALCO Committee -During the year the Asset Liability Committee met on June 9, 20'23, July

lrlag prlr
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Sr
No.

Name of the
Director

Member
of
Committee
Since

Capacity No. of meetings of
the committee

No. of
shares
held in
the
NBFC

Held Attended

1 *Mr. Ramesh
Kumar
Aravamuthan

2 Mr. Mukul
Gulati

3 Mr. Vijaya
Kumar Chowti
Shivananda

4 Mr. Prashant
Banerjee

1.7-06-2022 Non-
executive

-l
t) 40,87,482

17 -06-2022

77-06-2022

Nominee

lndependent

5 5 NIL

:) ) NIL

^12-07-2023 Executive 5 5 NIL

*Mr. A. Ramesh Kumar vacated his office as Director of the Company w.e.f. June 1'8,2023

d. Nomination & Remuneration Committee - During the year Nomination & Remuneration

Conrmittee had met on June 9,2023,Jn1y 18, 2023, September 29,2023, December 14, 2023 and

February 1,9,2024.

Member
of.

Committee
Since

No. of meetings of
the committee

No. of
shares
held in
the
NBFC

Held Attended

1 *Mr. Ramesh
Kumar
Aravamuthan

1.8-01.-2022 Non-
executive

1 t) 40,87,482

2 Mr. N{ukul
Gulati

18-01-2022 Nominee J 5 NIL

Mr. Viiaya
Kumar Chowti
Shivananda

1.8-01.-2022 Independent 3 5 NIL

Sr
No. Director

CapacityName of the

*Mr. A. Ramesh Kumar vacated his office as Director of the Company w.e.l. June 1,8,2023

e. IT Strategy Committee - During the year the IT Strategy Committee had met on February

79,2024.
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Sr
No.

Member
of
Committee
Since

Capacity No. of meetings of
the committee

No. of
shares
held in
the
NBFC

Held Attended

1 Mr. Viiaya
Kumar Chowti
Shivananda

"14-1.2-2023 Independent 1 1 NIL

2 Mr. Mukul
Gulati

1.4-12-2023 Nominee 1 1 NIL

1.4-12-2023 Executive -t
1 NIL

Name of the
Director

Mr. Prashant
Banerjee

3

f. Debt Approval Committee - During the year Debt Approval Committee had met on

Februarv ^19, 2024.

15. General Body Meetings

Exha-Ordinary
Ceneral Meeting

Date - March 14,2024
Place - Registered Office at 142, Golcha
house New Colony Sadar Nagpur,
Maharashha 440001I

16. Compliance with Secretarial Standafdc

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating

effechvelv.

Er

Sr.
No.

Type of Meeting Date and Place

Annual General
Meeting

Date - September 8,2023
Place - Registered Office at 142 Golcha
house New Colony Sadar Nagpur,
Maharashtra 440001

Special Resolutions
Passed

1 3

1

NagPtrt

Mic16
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17. Directors' Respo nsibilitv Statement

With reference to clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, Your

Directors state that-

(i) ln the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) Your directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and

loss of the company for that period;

(c) Your directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets

of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) Your directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concem basis; and

(e) Your directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

18. Statutory Auditors

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 26,2022, M/s. Kantilal
Patel & Co., Chartered Accountants, having registration no. (FRN 104744W were appointed

as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five years starting from financial

vear 2022-23 and that they shall hold office from the conclusion of 14th Annual General

Meeting till the conclusion of the 19th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2027 i.e

for financial year 2026-27 as per the Guidelines of Reserve Bank of India for Appointrnent of

Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks

(excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFC s (including HFCs).
'fhc report of the Statutory Auditors along with notes to Schedules is enclosed with this

report.

19. Auditors' Relqr!

'i'he observations of the Statutory Auditors, when read together with the relevant notes to the

accounts and accounting policies are self-explanatory and do not call for any further

comment.

?, irlagprrr
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20. Risk Manasement Policv & Internal Control Adeq uacv

Thc Company has in place the mechanism to assess, monitor & mitigate various risks to key

business objectives. Major risks identified by the business and functions are systematically

addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. These are discussed at the

meetings of the [tisk Management Committee and Board of Directors of the Company.

The Company's internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its busrness

and the size and complexity of its operations. Significant audit observations and follow-up

actions thereon are reported to the Board. The Board of Directors reviews the adequacy and

cffectiveness of the Company's intemal control environment and monitors the

implementation of audit recommendations.

21. Itelated party transactions

During the year under review, the Company has not entered into any related party
transaction. Therefore, the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not
attracted. Thus, disclosure in AOC-2 is not required.

Iurther, the Rr:lated Party Transactions Policy of the Company duly approved by the Board

is available on the Company website and also attached herewith as Annexure A.

22. Declaration from Inde endent I)irector

The Companl, has received a declaration from the Independent Director to the effect that
he met the criteria of independence as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

23. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earninqs and

Outgo

The information pertaining to the conservation of energy, technology absorption, Foreign

Exchange Earnings and Outgo, as required under Section la+ (3)(m) of the Companies Act,

2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 during the Financial Year

under review, are given below.

(a) Conservation of energy

The particulars as required under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of

conservation of energy have not been furnished considering the nature of activities

unclertaken bv the company during the year under review.

Nagpur
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(b) Technology absorption

The Company has continued developing its in-house software METIS in order to create a

comprehensive technology-driven workflow across the organization. All loan Processes
move through the systcm and each loan file is traceable in real time with its current stage

along with its movement timelines. The Company keeps upgtading METIS in line with the

business requirements and some of the major implementations completed during the

financial year 23-24 are as below -

. lntegrated the CIBIL API into METIS so that the Borrower data can be easily downloaded
from the CIBIL Credit Bureau.

. Integrated the E-NACH feature into METIS, to enable the regishation of the borowers
and processing of NACH transactions through E-NACH.

. Developed a "Document Dispatch" module for the Operations departrren! allowing them

to easily track whether all borrower documents have been received by field staff and

whether the documents have been handed over to the borrowers.
. Added a I)ocument Dispatch feature to the Mobile-App for field staff, allowing them to

upload all rcquired information related to document dispatch.
. Enabled features for easy preparation of Advocate Notices for issuance to the Borrowers.
. Integrated Google Maps directions to borrower locations in the METIS mobile app for

field staff.

'Ihe total cost moved to Software Work in Progress (SWIP) during the year under review
is given below. Also, the total cost of the modules capitalized in FY 23-24 is given below -

SWIP booked in FY 23-24: Nil
Capitalized in FY 23-24: Nil

(c) Foteign Exchange Inflow and Outflow

Foreign Exchange lnllow: Nil
Foreign Exchange Oufflow: INR 2,06,400/- paid towards sitting fees to the Director

other than those which .ue reportable to the central government

'l'here were no such reporting by the auditor under Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act,
2013 during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable.

IE
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25. SienificanVmaterial orders passed bv the Resulators:

There are no other significant and material orders passed by the regulators or coults or

hibunals impacting the going concern status and Company's oPerations in the future.

26. Particulars of Employees:

Being a Private limited company, the particulars of the employees as required under Section

197 of Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 (2) & rule 5 (3) of Companies (appointment and

remuneration) Ii.ules 2014 are not applicable, during the year under review.

27. Emplovee Stock Option Plan:

The Company has Swarna Pragati - Employee Stock Option Plan 2023 for its Employees/

f)irectors approved by the Shareholders at their Annual General Meeting held on September

8, 2023. During the financial year ending on March 31,, 2024, amendments to the Swarna

Pragati - Employee Stock Option Plan 2023 were approved by the shareholders during their

meeting held on March 14, 2024. The Company has granted options under the Swarna

Pragati - Employee Stock Option Plan 2023 to Mr. Prashant Banerjee, Whole-time Director

& Chicf Executive Officer and other 8 (Eight) Employees who have completed 7 years of
service with the Company as of January 01,,2022.

The Companir has with the concurrence of the Option holders and with the approval of

Shareholclcrs at their meeting held on March 14, 2024, cancelled all the ESOPs granted vide

approval of the Shareholders dated March'1,4,2022.

The Board of Directors of the Company administers and monitors the Employees Stock

Option Scheme in accordance with the provisions under Section 62(1Xb) of the Companies

Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules,2014.

Thc applicable disclosures as stipulated under Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital

and Debenture) Rules, 2014, as on March 3L, 2024 are set out in "Annexure B" which forms a

part of the Report.

28. Sexual Harass ment Policv

'fhe Companv has in place a policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace in line

with thu requirements of the sexual I Iarassment of women at workplace (Prevention,

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 ("Sexual Harassment Act") and rules framed

thereunder. Your Company believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for

every individual and endeavors to create and ptovide an environment that is free from

7 i{ag prtr
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discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.

'l'hc company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal

Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. No cases of Sexual Harassment were rePorted during

the year under review, pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

29. Y ieil Mechanism, Whistle Blower Policv

Your Company as part of the "Vigil Mechanism" has in place a "Whistle Blower Policy" to

deal with instances of fraud and misappropriations, if any. During the year under review, no

whistle-blower complaint was received.

30. Transfer of unclaimed dividend to investor education and protection fund

Since there was no unpaid/ unclaimed Dividend in the last year, the provisions of Section 125

of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply.

31. Corporate Social Responsibilitv

-fhe company does not meet the criteria of Section 135 of Companies Ac! 2013 read with the

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,2014 so there is no requirement to

constitute Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

32. Comnliance of Principal Business Criteria (PBC)

Your Companv is adhering to Principal Business Criteria (PBC) for HFCs as specified under
Para 4.7."17 of Master Directions - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance

Companv (Reserve Bank) Directions,2021, and as updated from time to time and details with
respect to the same are provided in Note no. 48.1.1 of the Audited Financial Statements.

33. Reportins of Frauds to the National Housing Bank (NHB)

l)uring the year under review, the Company has reported 11 incidents of fraud amounting
to l\s. 4,73,012/ - to NHB during the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

34. Acknowled ements

Your Directors place on record their gratitude for the continuing suPPort of Shareholders,

Bankers and Business Associates at all levels.
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Date:AuJus[ 21,2o2\

For and on behalf of the Board

Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited

Pr Banerjee
Direc
DIN:09786756
Place: Bengaluru

Mukul Gulati
I)irector
DIN:00746183
Place: Bengaluru
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Annexure 'A' to Board's Report

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTIONS
(Pursuant to clause 12 (9) of the companies (share capital and Debenture) Rules,2014)

Details of Employee stock option plan list as on March 31"t,2024

A. To Mr. Prashant Banerjee

E

C)ptions appror.crl to be issuecl as ESOPs 2-t,72,191

Options Granted 21.,72,491.

3

Olrtiotrs Excrcisetl
1.3,03,495

-1

) Tl-rt' total nurnlrer of shares arising as a result of
excrcisc of optior-r

2t,72,1c)5

6 Optitxs Lapsed/ Surrendered
The exercise price Rs. 10/- per share

u Variatior-r of Terms of Options NA
()

l0

\lonct' rcalized [.rv rxercise of options durilrg the vear
2r)23-24

Total rrumber of optiorls in force 21.,72,49't

1l Details of options gralrted to:
i) Key rnarragerial ptrsomel 1

ii) any other employee who receives a grant of options in
anY ollo vcar of option amounting to five percent or
morr of options grantcd during that ,vear'

Nil

i ii) idcrrti f ictl rrnplovcc's who u'ert' granted op fion, during
an\' or1(, vear, e.tlual to ol exce,eding one ;rercent of the
issur-rl c.rpital (excluding outstanc{ing r1'arrants and
cor.rvt rsions) of thr. company at tlle time of grant

Nil

Nagpt rr
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B. To other Employees:

iii)

E
fc\

I C)ptions approvecl to be issucd as ESOPs 8,000

2 ()ptions Crantecln 8,000

3 Options Vestt'd 8,000

I Options Exe.rcised

) The total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of
option

tt,000

6 Options Lapsed/ Surrendered
7 Thc cxercise price Rs. 10 per

share
8 Variation of Terms of Options NA
9 l\{orrtv rctrlized bv exorcise of opticxrs rluring the year 2023-24
10. lirtal number of options in force 8,000

11 Details of options granted to:

,) Key man:rgerial personnel Nil
ii) anl other crnplovee n ho receives a grant of options in any one

voar of option ;rrnounting k) five pelcent or more of options

11.urtccl cluring that 1,r';rr

Nil

idontified t'mplovees who u'ore granted option, cluring any
one vear, equal to or exceetling one percent of the issuetl
capital (exclucling outstanding r,!'arrants and conversions) of
thc cornpanv at the time of grant

Nil
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A. INTRODUCTION 
 

Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited (“the Company”) is committed to 
upholding the ethical and legal conduct in fulfilling its responsibilities and recognizes that 
related party transactions can present a risk of actual or apparent conflicts of interest of the 
Directors, Senior Management, other related parties etc. with the interest of the Company. 
 
The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company, has adopted the following policy and 
procedures with regard to Related Party Transactions (“RPT”) as defined below, in 
compliance with the requirements of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Master   
Direction   -   Non-Banking   Financial   Company   - Housing Finance Company (Reserve 
Bank) Directions, 2021 in order to ensure the transparency and procedural fairness of such 
transactions. 

 
B. OBJECTIVE 

 

Section 188 of the Companies Act read along with the Companies (Meetings of Board and 
its Powers) Rules, 2014 provides the detailed mechanism for dealing with the RPTs of a 
company by the Audit Committee of the Board (“Audit Committee”) including all the 
approvals required to be passed by the Board and the Shareholders in different 
circumstances. The objective of this policy is to ensure proper approvals and reporting of 
transactions between the Company and its related parties in compliance of provisions of the 
Companies Act and all other applicable statutory provisions for the time being in force, in 
this regard. 
This policy is designed to govern the transparency of the approval process and disclosure 
requirements to ensure fairness in the conduct of related party transactions. The Board may 
amend this policy from time to time as may be required. 
Any exceptions to the policy on RPTs must be consistent with the Companies Act, including 
the rules there under and must be approved in the manner as may be decided by the Board. 

 
C. DEFINITIONS 

1. “Arm's Length transaction” means a transaction between two related parties that is 
conducted as if they are unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest, as defined 
in explanation (b) to Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act. 

2.  “Associate Company”, in relation to another company, means any entity which is 
an associate under sub-section (6) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 or under 
the applicable accounting standards. 

3. “Audit Committee” means Audit Committee constituted by the Board of Directors 
of the Company under the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013. 

4. “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company. 

5. “Control” includes the right to appoint majority of the directors or to control the 
management or policy decisions exercisable by a person or persons acting 
individually or in concert, directly or indirectly, including by virtue of their 
shareholding or management rights or shareholders agreements or voting 
agreements or in any other manner: 

6. Provided that a director or officer of the company shall not be considered to be in 
control over such company, merely by virtue of holding such position. 



 

 

7. “Key Managerial Personnel” or “KMP” includes: 

 the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager; 

 the Company Secretary; 

 the Whole time Director; 

 the Chief Financial Officer; 

 such other officer, not more than one level below the directors who is in whole-
time employment, designated as key managerial personnel by the Board;  

 such other officer as may be prescribed under the Companies Act 

8. “Material related party transactions” means those transactions entered into with 
the Company by a related party, which when individually or together with previous 
transactions during a financial year, exceeds rupees one thousand crore or ten 
percent of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited 
financial statements of the Company whichever is lower. 

Notwithstanding the above, a transaction involving payments made to a related 
party with respect to brand usage or royalty shall be considered material if the 
transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken together with previous 
transactions during a financial year, exceed five percent of the annual consolidated 
turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements. 

9. “Material Modification” shall mean a 10% or more increase in the original value/ 
consideration of any Related Party Transaction which was approved by the Audit 
Committee/Shareholders of the Company, as the case may be. 

10. “Ordinary course of business” in order to determine whether a transaction is within 
the ordinary course of business or not, some of the principles that may be adopted 
to assess are as follows: 

 whether the transaction is in line with the usual transactions, customs and 
practices undertaken by the Company to conduct its business operations and 
activities; 

 whether it is permitted by the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 
Company; and 

 whether the transaction is such that it is required to be undertaken in order to 
conduct the routine or usual transactions of a company. 

11. “Related Party” means a related party as defined under Section 2(76) the Companies 
Act, 2013 as amended from time to time. 

  
12. “Related Party Transactions” means transactions/ contracts/arrangements 

between the Company and its related parties which fall under one or more of the 
following headings: 

 
Related Party Transaction under Section 188 of the Companies Act: 

 Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials; 

 Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind; 



 

 

 Leasing of property of any kind; 

 Availing or rendering of any services, 

 Appointment of any agent for the purchase or sale of goods, materials, 
services or property; 

 Such related party's appointment to any office or place of profit in the 
Company, its subsidiary Company or associate Company; and 

 Underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives thereof, of the 
Company. 
 

 

13.  “Relatives”, as stated in Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, with reference to 
any person, means anyone who is related to another, if – 

 

 They are members of a Hindu Undivided Family; 
 They are husband and wife; or 
 One person is related to the other in the following manner, namely: 

 

a) Father including step father; 
b) Mother including step mother; 
c) Son including step son; 
d) Son’s Wife; 
e) Daughter; 
f) Daughter’s Husband; 
g) Brother including step brother; and 
h) Sister including step sister 

 
14. “Office or place of profit” means any office or place: 

 

 where such office or place is held by a Director, if the Director holding it 
receives from the Company anything by way of remuneration over and 
above the remuneration to which he is entitled as director, by way of salary, 
fee, commission, perquisites, any rent‐ free accommodation, or otherwise; 
and 

 where such office or place is held by an individual other than a Director or 
by any firm, private company or other body corporate, if the individual, firm, 
private company or body corporate holding it receives from the Company 
anything by way of remuneration, salary, fee, commission, perquisites, any 
rent free accommodation, or otherwise. 

 
15. “Total Share Capital” means the aggregate of the paid‐up equity share capital 

and convertible preference share capital of the Company. 
 

D. DETAILS REQUIRED FOR ASCERTAINING RELATED PARTY 
 

Every Director and KMP will be responsible for providing the following 
declarations to the Company Secretary (CCO) on an annual basis- 
 
1. Declaration/ Disclosure of interest by all the Directors and KMP in Form MBP 1; 
2. Declaration of relatives by all Directors and KMPs as per Annexure - I; 
3. Declaration about a firm in which a Director/ Manager or his relative is a partner; 
4. Declaration about a private Company in which a Director or Manager or his 

relative is a Member or Director; 
5. Declaration regarding a public company in which a Director or manager is a 

Director and holds along with the relatives more than 2% of the paid up share 
capital; 



 

 

6. Notices from Directors of any change in particulars of Directorship or in other 
positions during the year; 

7. Details of any Body Corporate, whose Board of Directors, Managing Director  or 
Manager is accustomed to act in accordance with the advice, directions or 
instructions of a Director or Manager of the Company; 

8. Details of any person on whose advice, directions or instructions a Director or 
Manager is accustomed to act; apart from advice given in professional capacity; 
and 
 

9. Details of any company which is: 
 

 An investing company or the venturer of the Company. 
 

E. IDENTIFICATION OF POTENTIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 

 
The Company Secretary shall at all times maintain a database of the Company’s 

Related Parties containing the names of individuals and companies, identified on the 

basis of the definition set forth above, along with their personal/ company details 

including any revisions therein. 

The Finance & Accounts Team shall be provided with a complete list of related parties 

in respect of the Company. Any proposed transaction with Related Party shall be 

communicated to the Company Secretary for consideration and approval by the 

Audit Committee and/or the Board of the Company. If the transactions are regular 

in nature, the Finance & Accounts Team shall seek an enabling approval from the 

Board with financial limit for such transactions each year. 

The Related Party list shall be updated whenever necessary, as per intimation 

received by the Company Secretary and shall be reviewed on a quarterly basis. 

In determining whether to approve or not a Related Party Transaction, the Board will 

take into account, among other factors, recommendations of the Audit Committee, 

whether the said Related Party Transaction is in the interest of the Company and its 

stakeholders and whether there is any actual or potential conflict of interest between 

the related parties or between the related parties and the Company. 

 
F. APPROVAL OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
In accordance with Section 188 of the Companies Act and the Listing Regulations, the 

Board of Directors and Shareholders of the Company shall accord prior approval for 

Related Party Transactions, subject to the following: 

 
Audit Committee, Board of Directors and Shareholders’ approval in terms of 
Companies Act: 
 
All material Related Party Transactions which are either not on Arm’s Length Basis 

or not in the Ordinary Course of Business shall be recommended by the Audit 

Committee for the approval of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall 

further recommend the same for the approval of the Shareholders by way of 

resolution of the Company, in case the said transactions exceed the value of 

transactions as provided under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 

15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and any 



 

 

amendment thereof or the transaction is defined as material related party transaction 

by the Audit Committee. 

 

Where an omnibus approval is obtained, the Company Secretary shall obtain details of 

the Related Party Transactions undertaken by the Company on a quarterly basis, 

review the value of such transactions and present the same before the Audit Committee 

for any additional approvals, where the limits laid down under the omnibus approval 

are likely to be breached. 

 

Individual transactions with Related Parties, which are not in Ordinary Course of 

Business and not on an Arm’s Length Basis, shall be accompanied with management’s 

justification for the same. Before approving such transactions, the Audit Committee 

will look into the interest of the Company and its Shareholders in carrying out the 

Related Party Transactions and alternative options, if any, available. The Audit 

Committee may accordingly approve or modify such transactions, in accordance with 

this policy and/ or recommend the same to the Board for approval. 

 

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee/Board shall pay sufficient attention and 

ensure that adequate deliberations are held before approving Related Party 

Transactions which are not in Ordinary Course of Business and not on Arm’s Length 

Basis and assure themselves that the same are in the interest of the Company and its 

Shareholders. 

 

G. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS THAT REQUIRE PRIOR 
APPROVAL OF SHAREHOLDERS AS PER COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 

 Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or material, directly or through appointment 

of agent, amounting to ten percent or more of the turnover of the Company; 

 Selling or otherwise disposing of or buying property of any kind, directly or through 

appointment of agent, amounting to 10% or more of net worth of the Company; 

 Leasing of property any kind amounting to 10% or more of the turnover of 

Company; 

 Availing or rendering of any services, directly or through appointment of agent, 

amounting 10% or more of the turnover of the Company; 

 Explanation: It is hereby clarified that the limits specified in points 1 to 4 above shall 

apply for transaction or transactions to be entered into either individually or taken 

together with the previous transactions during a financial year. 

 Transaction is for appointment of relative or himself to any office or place of profit 

in the Company, its subsidiary company or associate company at a remuneration 

exceeding ₹2,50,000 (Rupees Two Lakh Fifty Thousand) per month and 

 Remuneration for underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives 

thereof, of the company exceeding one percent of the net worth. 

 Explanation: The turnover or net worth referred in the above points shall be 

computed on the basis of the audited financial statement of the preceding financial 

year. 

 



 

 

 

H. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS NOT APPROVED UNDER THIS POLICY 
 

Where any contract or arrangement is entered into by a Director or any other 

employee of the Company with a Related Party, without obtaining the consent of the 

Board or approval by a resolution in the general meeting, where required and if it is 

not ratified by the Board or, as the case may be, by the Shareholders, at a meeting 

within three months from the date on which such contract or arrangement was 

entered into, the matter shall be reviewed by the Audit Committee, which may 

consider all of the relevant facts and circumstances regarding the Related Party 

Transactions and evaluate all the options available with the Company. Such contract 

or arrangement shall be voidable at the option of the Board and if the contract or 

arrangement is with a Related Party to any Director, or is authorized by any other 

Director, the Directors concerned shall indemnify the company against any loss 

incurred by it. 

The Company may proceed against a Director or any other employee who had 

entered into such contract or arrangement in contravention of this Policy for recovery 

of any loss sustained by it as a result of such contract or arrangement and shall take 

any such action, it deems appropriate. 

 
Audit Committee may also examine the facts and circumstances pertaining to the 

failure of reporting such Related Party Transactions to the Audit Committee under 

this Policy and take any such action it deems appropriate. 

 

I. RECORDS 

 
The Company shall maintain adequate records, either physically or electronically, as 

required under applicable laws, giving separately the particulars of all contracts or 

arrangements to which this policy applies. 

 
J. DISCLOSURES 

 
Every Contract or arrangement entered with Related Parties to which sub section (1) 

of Section 188 of the Companies Act is applicable shall be referred to in the Board’s 

Report to the Shareholders along with the justification for entering into such contract 

or arrangements. The disclosures should also be made in Form AOC-2 as prescribed 

under the Companies Act. 

 

The Company shall disclose the contract or arrangements entered into with the 

Related Party in the Board’s Report to the Shareholders along with the justification 

for entering into such contract or arrangement. 

 

The Company shall disclose this policy relating to Related Party Transactions on its 

website and a web link thereto shall be provided in the Annual Report. 

 

 

 



 

 

K. EXEMPTION FROM APPLICABILITY OF THE POLICY 

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, but subject to the provisions of the applicable laws 

from time to time, this policy shall not apply to the following Related Party 

Transactions, which shall not require approval of Audit Committee, Board of 

Directors or Shareholders, as per the 5th proviso to section 188(1) and 4th proviso to 

section 177 (4) of Companies Act, 2013-: 

 

 Any transaction that involves the providing of compensation to a Director or Key 

Managerial Personnel in connection with his or her duties to/employment with 

the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates, including the 

reimbursement of reasonable business and travel expenses incurred in the 

ordinary course of business, other than transactions which are not on an Arm’s 

Length basis. 

 

 Any transaction in which the Related Party’s interest arises solely from the 

ownership of securities issued by the Company and the Related Party receives 

the same benefits pro rata as all other holders of the same class of securities, other 

than transactions which are not on an Arm’s Length basis. 

 

L. POLICY REVIEW 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company, subject to applicable laws is entitled to 

review, amend, suspend, or rescind this Policy at any time. However, the Board of 

Directors shall review the policy mandatorily every three years and update 

accordingly. Any difficulties or ambiguities in the Policy will be resolved by the Board 

of Directors in line with the broad intent of the Policy. The Board may also establish 

further rules and procedures, from time to time, to give effect to the intent of this 

Policy. 

In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this policy and of the provisions 

of the Companies Act and/or the Listing Regulations and any other applicable law 

dealing with related party transactions, such applicable regulation/provisions of law 

in force from time to time shall prevail over this policy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Annexure-I 

 

List of Relatives 

 

Sr.No. Relationship Full Name Address Shareholding in Swarna 

Pragati  

1 Spouse    

2 Father 

(including Step-

Father) 

   

3 Son (including 

Stepson) 

   

4 Daughter    

5 Daughter’s 

Husband 

   

6 Brother 

(Including Step-

Brother) 

   

7 Sister (Including 

Step-Sister) 

   

8 Mother 

(including Step-

Mother) 

   

9 Son’s Wife    

10 Members of 

HUF 

   

 





























Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
CIN: U65922MH2009PTC331333

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
₹ in Million

Note 
No.

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

A EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1) Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital 3 419.69                     419.69                     
(b) Reserves and surplus 4 (173.89)                    (84.57)                      

245.80                     335.12                     
2) Non-current liabilities

(a) Long-term borrowings 5 0.88                         -                          
(b) Other long-term liabilities 6 -                          9.65                         
(c) Long-term provisions 7 89.38                       110.96                     

90.26                       120.61                     
3) Current liabilities

(a) Short Term Borrowings
Current maturities of long term borrowings 1.50                         -                          

(b) Trade payables 8
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 0.37                         -                          
Others 5.38                         6.68                         

(c) Other current liabilities 6 10.12                       11.67                       
(d) Short-term provisions 7 3.72                         1.96                         

21.09                       20.31                       

TOTAL (1 + 2 + 3) 357.15                     476.04                     
B ASSETS

1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 9A 4.93                         5.23                         
(ii) Intangible assets 9B 1.92                         2.09                         
(iii) Capital Work in Progress 9C 0.52                         -                          
(iv) Intangible assets under development 9D -                           0.42                         

(b) Long-term loans and advances 10 252.35                     326.44                     
(c) Other non-current assets 11 36.15                       42.95                       

295.87                     377.13                     
2) Current assets

(a) Current investments 12 -                          11.57                       
(b) Cash and bank balances 13 12.07                       20.81                       
(c) Short-term loans and advances 10 41.57                       58.43                       
(d) Other current assets 11 7.63                         8.10                         

61.28                       98.91                       

TOTAL (1 + 2) 357.15                     476.04                     

Summary of material accounting policies 2.1    
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Kantilal Patel & Co.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
ICAI Firm Reg No. 104744W CIN: U65922MH2009PTC331333

Sd/- Sd/-
CA. Jinal Patel Mukul Gulati Prashant Banerjee
Partner  Director Director & Chief Executive Officer
Membership No. 153599 DIN No. 00746183 DIN No. 09786756
Place: Ahmedabad Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Date: July 31, 2024 Date: July 31, 2024 Date: July 31, 2024

Sd/- Sd/-
Meenakshi Dholwani Megha Mohunta
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Bangalore Membership No. F 10009
Date: July 31, 2024 Place: Nagpur

Date: July 31, 2024

Sd/-

Particulars



Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited

CIN: U65922MH2009PTC331333

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
₹ in Million

 Note No. 
 Year ended

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended

March 31, 2023 
I Income

(a) Revenue from operations 14 61.40 60.16                   
(b) Other income 15 44.47 49.43                   

Total income (I) 105.87 109.59                 

II Expenses
(a) Employee benefits expense 16 131.91 98.67                   
(b) Finance costs 17 0.22 4.71                    
(c) Depreciation and amortisation expense 18 2.94 3.42                    
(d) Other expenses 19 36.11 32.88                   
(e) Loan losses and provisions 20 20.70               (5.70)               

Total expenses (II) 191.88 133.98                 

III Profit / (Loss) before tax  (I- II) (86.01)              (24.39)              

IV Tax expense:
(a)  Current tax expense -                          -                      
(b)  (Excess) provision for tax relating to prior years -                          -                      
(c)  Deferred tax (credit)/charge -                      -                   

Total Tax expense (IV) -                      -                   

V Profit / (Loss) for the year (III-IV) (86.01)              (24.39)              
   

VI Earnings per share (EPS) 
(nominal value of ₹ 10 each):

Basic EPS ( Rs. per share) 21               (2.54)               -0.72
Diluted DPS (Rs. per share) 21               (2.54)               -0.72

Summary of material accounting policies 2.1              
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Kantilal Patel & Co.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
ICAI Firm Reg No. 104744W CIN: U65922MH2009PTC331333

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA. Jinal Patel Mukul Gulati Prashant Banerjee
Partner  Director Director & Chief Executive Officer
Membership No. 153599 DIN No. 00746183 DIN No. 09786756
Place: Ahmedabad Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Date: July 31, 2024 Date: July 31, 2024 Date: July 31, 2024

Sd/- Sd/-
Meenakshi Dholwani Megha Mohunta
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Bangalore Membership No. F 10009
Date: July 31, 2024 Place: Nagpur

Date: July 31, 2024

Particulars



Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited #REF!
CIN: U65922MH2009PTC331333

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

₹ ₹ ₹ ₹

A.  Cash flow from operating activities

Profit / (Loss) before tax (86.01)           (24.39)           

Adjustments for:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 2.35 1.81
Amortisation of ingangible assets 0.58 1.62

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment -                    (0.01)             

Employee stock option expense (3.32)             3.45
Contingent provision on standard assets 0.02 (0.27)             

Provision for doubtful advances (related to financing activity) (4.38)             (15.79)           

Bad debts written off 25.06 10.36
Amortisation of ancillary borrowing costs 0.01 0.42
Provision for other advances (19.40)           1.44
Interest income on fixed deposits (0.53)             (0.65)             

Profit on sale of current investments (0.37)             (0.55)             

0.03 1.83
Operating profit before working capital changes (85.98)           (22.56)           

Changes in working capital

Adjusted for (increase) / decrease in assets

Long term loans and advances 48.45 98.66
Short term loans and advances 16.86 41.89
Other non-current assets 6.79 (15.25)           

Other current assets (0.71)             6.54

Adjusted for increase / (decrease) in liabilities

Long term liabilities (7.67)             (8.97)             

Trade payables (0.93)             0.18
Other current liabilities (1.55)             4.52
Long term and Short term provisions 1.97 (2.35)             

63.21 125.23
Cash used in operations (22.77)           102.67
Net income tax (paid) 0.47                  (0.27)             
Net cash flow (used in) / from operating activities (A) (22.30)           102.40

B.  Cash flow from investing activities

(2.47)             (2.81)             

Sale of property, plant and equipment -                    0.03                  
Interest income on fixed deposits 1.71 0.57
Investment in fixed deposits not considered as cash and cash equivalents 0.00 0.00
Purchase of current investments (79.90)           (119.85)          

Sale of current investments 91.85 108.83           
Net cash flow (used in) / from investing activities (B) 11.19 (13.24)           

C.  Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from long term borrowings 3.00 0.00
Repayment of long term borrowings (0.63)             (82.70)           

Proceeds from issue of compulsorily convertible preference shares -                    

Net cash flow (used in) / from financing activities (C) 2.38 (82.70)           

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (8.74)             6.47
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 20.81 14.35

Cash and bank balances at the end of the year (refer note 13) 12.07 20.81

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and purchase of Intangible assets



Notes:

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Kantilal Patel & Co.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited

ICAI Firm Reg No. 104744W CIN: U65922MH2009PTC331333

Sd/-  Sd/-
Sd/- Mukul Gulati Prashant Banerjee
CA. Jinal Patel Director Director & Chief Executive Officer

Partner  DIN No. 00746183 DIN No. 09786756

Membership No. 153599 Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore

Place: Ahmedabad Date: July 31, 2024 Date: July 31, 2024

Sd/- Sd/-

Meenakshi Dholwani Megha Mohunta

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Bangalore Membership No. F 10009

Date: July 31, 2024 Place: Nagpur

Date: July 31, 2024

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method “ as set out in Accounting Standard (AS) - 3 'Cash Flow
Statements' notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.



Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
CIN: U65922MH2009PTC331333

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1 Corporate Information

2

2.1

(a) Current/ Non Current classification of assets and liabilities

(b) Use of estimates

(c) Property, plant and equipment

(d) Intangible assets 

(e) Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment/ Amortisation of Intangible asset

Particulars

Computers: Servers 6 years
Computers: other than servers 3 years

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value.

Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated in India on January 05, 2009 to provide housing finance in respect of new house / habitat and upgradation
and repairs/ renovations of existing shelters by way of productive housing in Indian rural areas. The Company is registered as a housing finance company without accepting public deposits with
National Hosuing Bank ('NHB') with effect from August 31, 2009 having registration no. 08.0075.09

Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared in confirmity with generally accepted accounting principles in India ('Indian GAAP') to comply in all material respects with the Accounting Standards
(‘AS’) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act') read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016, The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 (as amended) ('the NHB Directions') issued by NHB from time to time.
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention except as detailed in note no. 2.1(h). The accounting policies have been consistently
applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in the previous year.

Summary of material accounting policies

As required by Schedule III, the Company has classified assets and liabilities into current and non-current based on the operating cycle. An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of
assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Since normal operating cycle is not readily determinable considering the Company's business i.e housing finance, the
operating cycle has been considered as 12 months. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future
periods.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance. All other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for
the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in an amalgamation in the nature of purchase is their fair value as at the
date of amalgamation. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible
assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line method basis over the estimated useful economic life. The Company uses a rebuttable presumption that the useful life of an intangible asset will
not exceed ten years from the date when the asset is available for use. If the persuasive evidence exists to the affect that useful life of an intangible asset exceeds ten years, the Company
amortizes the intangible asset over the best estimate of its useful life. Such intangible assets and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually, either individually or
at the cash-generating unit level. All other intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the
amortization period is changed accordingly. If there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the amortization method is changed to reflect the
changed pattern. Such changes are accounted for in accordance with AS-5 Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and Changes in Accounting Policies.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development
The Company discloses property, plant and equipment that are not ready for use as Capital work-in-progress. These are carried at cost, comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses.
Intangible assets not ready for their intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as ‘Intangible assets under development’.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on the written down value method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation/amortization on its fixed assets,

Useful life estimate (As specified in Schedule II of Companies Act, 
2013)



Office Equipment 5 years
Furnitures & Fixtures 10 years
Plant & Machinery 15 years
Vehicles 8/10 years
Computer Software 5 years

(f) Loans to borrowers 

(g) Investments

(h) Revenue recognition

Investments, which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other
investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investment are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value except for investment in mutual funds which are
carried at their Net asset value declared by the mutual fund in accordance with the NHB Directions.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. 

(a) Interest income 
Interest income on loans is recognised by applying interest rate implicit in the contract. In case of non-performing assets, interest income is recognised on receipt basis in accordance with the
NHB directions.

Loans are stated at the amount advanced, as reduced by the amounts received up to the balance sheet date.



(i) Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Leave benefits

(j) Leases
Operating Lease

(k) Taxes on income

(l) Earnings per Share

(m) Impairment of assets

In accordance with the provisions of the Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits with respect to
provident fund, a defined contribution plan in which both the Company and the employee contribute monthly at a determined rate (currently 12% of employee’s basic salary). Company’s
contribution to Provident Fund is charged as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(d) Profit/ Loss on sale of investments
Profit/loss earned on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis. Profit or loss on sale of investments is determined on the basis of the weighted average cost method.
On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plans
Benefits payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to gratuity, a defined benefit plan is accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date. In
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in an
amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The present value of such obligation is determined by the
projected unit credit method and adjusted for past service cost and fair value of plan assets as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be settled. The resultant actuarial
gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benefit obligation or change in return of the plan assets is recognised as an income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
expected return on plan assets is based on the assumed rate of return of such assets.

Where the Company is lessee
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as
an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the tenure of the lease.

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in
India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss.
Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier
years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is
recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses,
all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The Company writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the
extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the
Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the
said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date
and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income
relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential
equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are
deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. 

(b) Income from assignment
Income on retained interest in the assigned asset, if any, is accounted on an accrual basis, except in case of non-performing assets wherein interest income is recognised on receipt basis in
accordance with the NHB Directions.

(c) Processing fee income
Processing fee income on loan is recognised as income in the year in which the loan is disbursed to the borrowers.

Compensated absences with respect to leave encashment benefits payable to employees of the Company while in service, on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment
with respect to accumulated leaves outstanding at the year end are accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.



(n) Foreign currency transactions
(i) Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the
date of the transaction.

(ii) Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the

exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

(iii)  Exchange Differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company's monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or
reported in previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise. 

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted at the pre tax discount rate reflecting current market assessment of time value of money and risks specific to asset.  

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

A previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances. However the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value
that would have prevailed by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment.



(o) Expenses on issue of securities

(p) Borrowing costs

(q)

(r)

(s) Provisions

(t) Contingent liabilities

(u) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(v) Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises
in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand and cash at bank including fixed deposit with original maturity period of three months and short term
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Expenses incurred with respect to issuance of securities are debited to securities premium account in accordance with the provisions of Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Borrowing costs consists of interest and other ancillary cost that an entity incurs in connection with borrowing of funds. Ancillary costs incurred in connection such borrowings are amortised on a
straight line basis over the tenure of such borrowings. All borrowing costs are charged in statement of profit & Loss of the year in which incurred.

Employee share based payments
In case of stock option plan, measurement and disclosure of the employee share-based payment plans is done in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based
Payments issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Company measures compensation cost relating to employee stock option using the fair value method. Compensation
expense is amortised over the vesting period of the option on a straight line basis.

(i) Provisioning norms for loans under financing activity

(ii) Write off (Loans under financing activity)

Contingent provision for standard assets and provision for non-performing assets is determined based on management estimates subject to minimum requirements stipulated in the NHB
Directions. 

Loans are written off by the Company based upon management's assessment of ultimate recovery (net of recoveries, if any made during the year).

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the
year ended 31 March 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.



Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
CIN: U65922MH2009PTC331333

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

5. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS ₹ in Million

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 

Term loans
                            -   -                          -                          -                          
                            -   -                          -                          -                          

Term loans
 - Banks                             -   -                          

0.88                         -                          1.50                        -                          
0.88                         -                          1.50                        -                          

* Amount disclosed under the head 'Short Term Borrowings' (Refer note no. 6)

a. Security details for Secured Term Loans

a.1.

b. Terms of repayment:

Term loans from Banks and Others-Secured

As at March 31, 2024 ₹ in Million

Tenure Rate of interest  Repayment Details Current Portion  Total 

36-48 months -                          -                          -                -                          -                          
24-36 months -                          -                          -                -                          -                          
12-24 months -                          -                          -                -                          -                          
Upto 12 Months -                          -                          -                -                          -                          
Grand Total -                          -                -                          -                          

Term loans from Banks and Others-Unsecured

As at March 31, 2024 ₹ in Million

Tenure Rate of interest
 Non-Current 

portion 
Current Portion  Total 

36-48 months -                          -                          -                          
24-36 months

-                          -                          -                          
12-24 months 16% Monthly -                          0.88                        
Upto 12 Months 16% Monthly 1.50                        1.50                        
Grand Total -                          -                1.50                        2.38                        

As at March 31, 2023
Tenure Rate of interest Repayment Details Current Portion  Total 

36-48 months

24-36 months
12-24 months
Upto 12 Months
Grand Total

Nil.

Repayment 

Security details for Unsecured Term Loans

Non-Current 
portion

The company has no debt outstanding as on 31-03-2023.

-                
0.88              
-                

Repayment Details

-                

The Outstanding term loan is unsecured.

 Current Maturities* 

Secured

 - Others

Non Current maturities

Unsecured

 - Banks
 - Others



Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
CIN: U65922MH2009PTC331333

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

6. OTHER LIABILITIES
₹ in Million

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

Retention commission payable to business associates -                             9.65                           -                             -                    
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings -                             -                             0.02                           -                    
Payable to Employees -                             -                             5.09                           4.66                   
Excess money received from borrowers -                             -                             0.81                           2.21                   
Statutory dues -                             -                             4.03                           4.69                   
Others -                             -                             0.17                           0.11                   

Total -                             9.65                           10.12                         11.67                 

7. PROVISIONS

₹ in Million

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

Contingent provision for standard assets 0.47                           0.25                           -                             0.20                   
Provision for non-performing assets 71.52                         75.91                         -                             -                    
Provision towards doubtful advances 4.09                           8.90                           -                             -                    
Provision towards other assets 8.73                           23.31                         -                             -                    
Employee benefits 2.98                           1.86                           1.30                           0.56                   
Provision for compensated absences 1.59                           0.72                           2.42                           1.19                   

Total 89.38                         110.96                       3.72                           1.94                   

8 TRADE PAYABLES
₹ in Million

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

₹ ₹

Trade payables:
To Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises (Refer note below)

0.37                           -                             

Others 5.38                           6.68                           

Total 5.75                           6.68                           

* Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Particulars

Non-current Current

Non-current Current

Particulars

Particulars

Based on current information / confirmations available with the Company, there is a due of Rs. 0.37 Million to suppliers who are registered under
the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (the 'MSMED Act') as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Nil)



Ageing Schedule for Trade Payable due for Payment FY 2023-24
₹ in Million

2-3 Years Total
(i) MSME -                    0.37             
(ii) Others -                    5.38             
(ii) Disputed Dues - MSME -                    -               
(ii) Disputed Dues - Others -                    -               

Ageing Schedule for Trade Payable due for Payment FY 2022-23
₹ in Million

2-3 Years Total
(i) MSME -                    -               
(ii) Others -                    6.68             
(ii) Disputed Dues - MSME -                    -               
(ii) Disputed Dues - Others -                    -               

₹ in Million
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
                           0.37 
                               -   
                               -   

                               -   

                               -   
                               -   

Particulars
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years More than 3 YearsUnbilled

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

0.12                                  -                                    -                            
4.44                                  -                                    -                            
-                                    -                                    -                            
-                                    -                                    -                            

Particulars
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years More than 3 YearsNot DueUnbilled

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

-                                    -                                    -                            
5.50                                  -                                    -                            

The Company had sought confirmation from the vendors whether they fall in the category of Micro / Small / Medium Enterprises. Based on the 
information available, the required disclosures are given below:

Disclosure as required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

-                                    -                                    -                            
-                                    -                                    -                            

                                      -   

Particulars

(a) The principal amount outstanding as at the end of accounting year.
(b) Interest amount due and remaining unpaid as at the end of accounting year.
(c) Interest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made 
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

(d) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid 
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

(e) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year.
(f) Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of 
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

                                      -   
                                      -   
                                      -   

                                      -   

                                      -   

0.25                                  
0.94                                  
-                                    
-                                    

Not Due

-                                    
-                                    
-                                    
-                                    

-                                    
-                                    
-                                    
-                                    -                                    

-                                    
1.19                                  
-                                    



Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
CIN: U65922MH2009PTC331333

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

3. SHARE CAPITAL
₹ in Million

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

₹ ₹

(a) Authorised
3,90,00,000 Equity shares [March 31, 2023 : 3,90,00,000] of ₹ 10 each 390.00                         390.00                          

110.00                         110.00                          
500.00                         500.00                          

(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
I. Equity share capital 

338.51                         338.51                          
(14.81)                          (14.81)                           

Total (A) 323.71                         323.71                          

II. Preference share capital
95.99                           95.99                            

419.69                         419.69                          

(i)
₹ in Million

 No.of Shares held ₹  No.of Shares held ₹

Equity shares
3,38,51,319 338.51                3,38,51,319 338.51                          

-                            -                         -                               -                                

Balance at the end of the year 3,38,51,319 338.51 3,38,51,319 338.51                          

0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference 
Shares

95,98,513             95.99 95,98,513                    95.99                            
-                        -                      -                               -                                

Less: Convertion into Equity Shares -                                   -                                
Balance at the end of the year 95,98,513 95.99 95,98,513 95.99                            

(ia) Shareholding of Promoters

Current Reporting Period

No. of 
Shares

% of Total Shares No. of Shares
% of Total 

Shares
A. Ramesh Kumar 40,87,482 9.41 40,87,482 9.41
Raj Kumar Singh 8,17,495 1.88 8,17,495 1.88
Mukesh Kumar 2,72,498 0.63 2,72,498 0.63
SasiBhushan  Dash 1,56,661 0.36 1,56,661 0.36
Mohammad Sameer Siddiqui 4,57,737 1.05 4,57,737 1.05

Previous Reporting Period

No. of 
Shares

% of Total Shares No. of Shares
% of Total 

Shares
A. Ramesh Kumar 40,87,482 9.41 40,87,482 9.41
Raj Kumar Singh 8,17,495 1.88 8,17,495 1.88
Mukesh Kumar 2,72,498 0.63 2,72,498 0.63
SasiBhushan  Dash 1,56,661 0.36 1,56,661 0.36
Mohammad Sameer Siddiqui 4,57,737 1.05 4,57,737 1.05

(ii) Terms / Rights attached to equity and preference shares

Equity Shares

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS")

Promoter Name
Beginning of the year End of the year

Promoter Name
Beginning of the year End of the year

% Change during the year 
2023-24

 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Shares issued during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Shares issued during the year

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 

#Represents loan given to ESOP trust for subscription of shares of the Company in accordance with the ESOP scheme. The balance of unexercised equity shares by the trust at the
end of the year has been reduced against the relevant equity account i.e share capital as if the trust is administered by the Company itself in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Accounting for Employee Share based Payments issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Total (A + B)

Particulars

1,10,00,000 Preference shares [March 31, 2023 : 1,10,00,000] of ₹ 10 each

3,38,51,319 Equity shares [March 31, 2023: 3,38,51,319 Shares] of ₹ 10 each

95,98,513 Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares [March 31, 2023: 95,98,513] of ₹ 10 each (B)

Less: 14,80,500 Equity shares [March 31, 2023: 14,80,500] of ₹10 each held in Trust for employees
under ESOP Scheme#

% Change during the year 
2022-23

 -
 -
 -
 -

Voting Rights: 

 -

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of Equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend, if any, is proposed
by the Board of Directors and is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all Preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.

The CCPS Holders shall be entitled to exercise similar voting rights as the Shareholders holding Equity Shares, pro rata to their respective shareholding in the Company, and in
computing the CCPS Holders’ shareholding for the purposes of voting rights, the CCPS Holders’ entire shareholding in the Company (including the holding of CCPS) shall be taken into
account on an ‘as converted basis’, irrespective of the number of Equity Shares held by the CCPS Holders.



Terms of Conversion:
CCPS: convertible into 1 (one) equity share

CCPS Issued during F.Y. 19 -20 (hereinafter ‘Bridge Round CCPS’) -

(iii)

(iv)

 No.of Shares held %  No.of Shares held  % 
Equity shares

1. Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microfinance 
Development Company - II Limited

1,20,85,737          35.70% 1,20,85,737                 35.70%

98,93,823             29.23% 98,93,823                    29.23%

3. A. Ramesh Kumar 40,87,482             12.07% 40,87,482                    12.07%

0.001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares

1. Omidiyar Network Mauritius 56,54,741             58.91% 56,54,741                    58.91%

39,43,772             41.09% 39,43,772                    41.09%

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 

(v) Securities convertible into equity shares 95,98,513                    95,98,513                     

(vi) Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Option Scheme (Refer note 28) 14,80,500                    14,80,500                     

(vii) Nil Nil

4. RESERVES AND SURPLUS

₹ in Million
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 

(a) Securities Premium Account
Opening balance 407.98 407.98                          
Add: Premium on shares issued during the year
Closing balance 407.98 407.98                          

(b) Statutory Reserve (Under Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 '(NHB Act'))
Opening balance 24.63 24.63                            
Addition during the year -                               -                                
Appropriation during the year -                               -                                
Closing balance 24.63 24.63                            

(c) General Reserve
Opening balance 0.01 0.01                               
Add: Transferred from Share options outstanding account -                               -                                
Closing balance 0.01 0.01                               

(d) Share options outstanding account
Opening balance 3.79 0.34                               
Add: Cost amortised/ (reversal) during the year (3.32)                            3.45                               
Less: Reversed to statement of profit and loss upon forefeiture of options 0.00 -                                
Closing balance 0.47 3.79                               

(e) Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss 
Opening balance (520.98)                        (496.60)                         
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year (86.01)                          (24.39)                           
Less: Transferred to Statutory Reserve as per Section 29C of NHB Act -                               -                                
Closing balance (606.99)                        (520.98)                         

 Total (173.89)                        (84.57)                           

2. Zephyr Peacock India Fund III Limited

2. Zephyr Peacock India Fund III Limited

Aggregate number of shares issued for a consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the 

Particulars

Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Name of Shareholder
 As at March 31, 2024  As at March 31, 2023

c) upon the occurrence of a Liquidation Event.
The equity shares issued and allotted upon conversion of the CCPS Series shall rank pari passu with all the other equity shares of the Company.

Bridge Round CCPS shall be convertible at the option of the Bridge Round CCPS holder within 10 days of receipt of Bridge Round CCPS Conversion Notice as per the applicable 
Conversion Price.
Provided the Bridge Round CCPS shall be compulsorily convertible into fully paid at the then applicable Conversion Price at the earlier of:
a) Expiry of 19 (Nineteen) years from March 18, 2019;                                                                         
b) Immediately prior to filing of a red herring prospectus (or equivalent document, by whatever name called) by the Company in connection with an IPO in accordance with the Articles 
(as amended from time to time).
The Equity Shares to be issued upon the conversion of the Bridge Round CCPS shall, without prejudice to the special rights of the holders of the Bridge Round CCPS under the 
Articles, rank pari passu in all respects with the existing Equity Shares of the Company.

Details of shares held by the holding company: Nil

b) if required by the applicable law, on the occurrence of a Qualified IPO, as defined in the Share Holders Agreement, effective on the latest date prior to the Qualified IPO as is
permissible under applicable law, or

The entire issue of CCPS shall be convertible, at the option of the CCPS holders, within 7 days of receipt notice from the CCPS holders at the then applicable conversion ratio in
propotion to the face value of equity shares at the date of conversion, provided that the CCPS shall be converted upon the sooner to occur of:

a) the expiry of 19 (Nineteen) years from 10th December, 2015.
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₹ in Million

Balance 
as at 

April 01, 2023
Additions Disposals

As at 
March 31, 2024

Balance 
as at 

April 01, 2023

Depreciation / 
amortisation 

expense for the 
period

Deduction during 
the period

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2023

 A. Property, plant and 
equipment 

 (a) Furniture and Fixtures 10.07                        0.41                   10.48                        8.39                         0.52                         -                          8.91                           1.56                   1.68                         
 (Previous Year) (10.06)                       (0.11)                  (0.10)                 (10.07)                      (7.88)                        (0.59)                       (0.08)                       (8.39)                         (1.68)                  (2.18)                        

 (b) Office Equipment 3.83                          0.14                   -                    3.97                          3.64                         0.08                         3.72                           0.25                   0.19                         
 (Previous Year) (3.81)                         (0.02)                  -                    (3.83)                        (3.58)                        (0.06)                       -                          (3.64)                         (0.19)                  (0.23)                        

 (c) Computers 12.38                        1.50                   13.88                        10.88                       1.29                         -                          12.18                         1.71                   1.50                         
 (Previous Year) (11.15)                       (1.46)                  (0.23)                 (12.38)                      (10.44)                      (0.67)                       (0.23)                       (10.88)                       (1.50)                  (0.71)                        

 (d) Plant & Machinery 3.68                          3.68                          2.77                         0.17                         -                          2.93                           0.75                   0.91                         
 (Previous Year) (3.68)                         -                     (3.68)                        (2.56)                        (0.20)                       -                          (2.77)                         (0.91)                  (1.12)                        

 (e) Vehicles 1.26                          -                    1.26                          0.31                         0.29                         -                          0.60                           0.66                   0.95                         
 (Previous Year) (0.03)                         (1.23)                  -                    (1.26)                        (0.03)                        (0.28)                       -                          (0.31)                         (0.95)                  (0.00)                        
 Sub total 31.21                        2.05                   -                    33.27                        25.99                       2.35                         -                          28.34                         4.93                   5.23                         
 (Previous Year) (28.73)                       (2.81)                  (0.33)                 (31.21)                      (24.49)                      (1.81)                       (0.31)                       (25.99)                       (5.23)                  (4.24)                        

 B. Intangible Assets 
 (f) Computer Software 37.10                        0.42                   -                    37.51                        35.01                       0.58                         -                          35.59                         1.92                   2.09                         
 (Previous Year) (37.10)                       -                     -                    (37.10)                      (33.39)                      (1.62)                       -                          (35.01)                       (2.09)                  (3.71)                        

 Total (A+B) 68.31                        2.47                   -                    70.78                        60.99                       2.94                         -                          63.93                         6.85                   7.32                         
 Previous year (65.83)                       (2.81)                  (0.33)                 (68.31)                      (57.88)                      (3.42)                       (0.31)                       (60.99)                       (7.32)                  (7.95)                        

As of 31st March 2024, there was no revaluation of Property Plant and Equipments (PPE) and Intangible Assets.

Net BlockAccumulated depreciation

Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited

9. Prperty, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

Gross block

Particulars



9C. Capital Work in Progress aging schedule

Following are the details of Capital Work in Progress as at 31-03-2024,
₹ in Million

Less than1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
A. Project in Progress:

1. New Server 0.52                          -                     -                     -                            0.52                          

B. Projects Temporarily 
Suspended

NIL -                            -                     -                     -                            -                            

As at 31st March 2023, there was no Capital Work in Progress.

9D. Intangible Assets under development aging schedule

₹ in Million

Less than1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
A. Project in Progress: -                            -                     -                     -                            -                            

NIL -                            -                     -                     -                            -                            
B. Projects Temporarily 

Suspended
-                            -                     -                     -                            -                            

NIL -                            -                     -                     -                            -                            

Details of Intangible Asset under development as at 31-03-2023 is mentioned below:
₹ in Million

Less than1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
A. Project in Progress:

1. Appraisal Module -                            -                     0.42                   -                            0.42                          

B. Projects Temporarily 
Suspended

NIL -                            -                     -                     -                            -                            

Intangible Assets under 
development 

Amount in SWIP for a period of

Tangible Assets under 
development 

Amount in CWIP for a period of

 The company has capitalized Appraisal Module (Human Resource) on 01-06-2023 by transferrring Rs. 0.42 Million from Software Work in 
Progress to Intangible Asset (Software). There is no Intangible Assets under development as on 31-03-2024. 

Intangible Assets under 
development 

Amount in SWIP for a period of
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10

₹ in Million

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

I. Loans and advances related to financing activity
Secured, considered good*

Housing loans 55.42               44.02               22.08               38.02               
Non-housing loans 28.15               19.64               8.60                 9.48                 

Secured, considered doubtful**
Housing loans 136.37             216.31             -                   -                   
Non-housing loans 17.20               29.28               -                   -                   

Unsecured, considered good*
Non-housing loans 0.0006             -                   0.0003             -                   

Unsecured, considered doubtful**
Non-housing loans 0.08                 0.32                 -                   -                   

237.23             309.57             30.68               47.50               

II. Other loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good
 Security deposits 1.97                 1.87                 -                   -                   
 Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received -                   -                   10.90               10.93               
 Advance income tax (net of provisions) 13.15               13.62               -                   -                   
Unsecured, considered doubtful
 Other advances -                   1.37                 -                   -                   

15.12               16.86               10.90               10.93               
252.35             326.44             41.57               58.43               

* represents standard assets in accordance with the asset classification policy of the Company (refer note 2.1(r) )

** represents non-performing assets in accordance with the asset classification policy of the Company (refer note 2.1(r) )

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Non-current Current

GRAND TOTAL (I + II)
TOTAL

Particulars

TOTAL
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11 OTHER ASSETS

₹ in Million

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

Interest accrued on deposits with banks and financial institutions -                             -                             0.21                           1.39                           
Interest accrued on loans and advances under financing activities -                             -                             3.57                           1.48                           
Deposits with banks* (Refer note 13) 5.44                           1.68                           0.06                           -                             
Receivable from business associates (Refer Note 23) 30.72                         41.26                         -                             -                             
Other assets -                             -                             3.80                           3.15                           
Insurance Claim Receivable -                             -                             -                             2.09                           

36.15                         42.95                         7.63                           8.10                           

* includes Lien of Rs. 2.09 Millions in non current & Rs. 0.06 Million in current marked as Loss Default Cover by the Company.

12

₹ in Million
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 

-                             11.57                         
* measured at net asset value declared by the mutual fund in accordance with the NHB Directions.

13 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

₹ in Million

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 

I. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 1.99                           0.82                           
Balances in current accounts with banks 6.43                           7.99                           
Deposit with original maturity less than three months 3.65                           -                             

12.07                         8.81                           
II. Other Bank Balances

Deposit with original maturity for more than three months but less than twelve 
months #

-                             12.00                         

12.07                         20.81                         

Amount disclosed under non-current assets is 5.44 Millions and Rs. 0.06 Million 
in Current assets (Refer note no. 11) #

5.49                           1.68                           

Total

Total (I + II)

Investment in Mutual Funds

CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Particulars

Non-current Current

Particulars
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14
₹ in Million

Particulars
 Year ended

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended

March 31, 2023 

Financing activity
Interest Income on housing and non-housing loans 51.21                         54.75                         
Processing fees 3.50                           1.36                           

Legal and Technical Fee 1.42                           0.57                           

Loan File Login Fee 0.57                           0.18                           
Other operating revenue
Income from Business Correspondance activity 4.69                           3.31                           
Total 61.40                         60.16                         

15 OTHER INCOME
₹ in Million

Particulars
 Year ended

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended

March 31, 2023 

Interest on fixed deposits with banks and financial institutions 0.53                           0.65                           
Interest on delayed collection of deposit from business associates -                             10.09                         
Profit on sale of current investments 0.37                           0.55                           
Bad debts recovery 42.89                         37.53                         
Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.02                           -                             
Miscellaneous income 0.66                           0.59                           
Total 44.47                         49.43                         

16

₹ in Million

Particulars
 Year ended

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended

March 31, 2023 

Salaries and wages 122.87                       85.63                         
Contributions to Provident & Other fund (Refer Note 24) 7.75                           6.01                           
Staff welfare expenses & Stock option cost (Refer Note 28) 1.28                           7.03                           
Total 131.91                       98.67                         

17 FINANCE COSTS

₹ in Million

Particulars
 Year ended

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended

March 31, 2023 

Interest expense on borrowings 0.21                           4.28                           
Amortisation of ancillary borrowing costs 0.01                           0.42                           
Total 0.22                           4.71                           

18 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
₹ in Million

Particulars
 Year ended

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended

March 31, 2023 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 9) 2.35                           1.81                           
Amortisation of intangible Assets (Refer Note 9) 0.58                           1.62                           
Total 2.94                           3.42                           

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
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19 OTHER EXPENSES

₹ in Million

Particulars
 Year ended

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended

March 31, 2023 

Rent expenses [Refer Note 26] 7.53                          6.46                          
Repairs & Maintenance 1.80                          1.39                          
Rates & Taxes -                                0.02                          
Travelling & Conveyance 14.02                        9.80                          
Printing & stationery 0.55                          0.53                          
Communication expenses 1.26                          1.19                          
Business promotion expenses 0.42                          0.24                          
Electricity & water charges 1.02                          0.85                          
Commission to business associates -                                2.02                          
Legal & Professional charges 8.73                          5.18                          
Auditors Remuneration
  - as auditor 0.62                          0.58                          
  - for Certification 0.20                          0.20                          
Director Sitting Fee 0.93                          0.87                          
Bank charges 0.30                          0.08                          
Provision for other advances (4.14)                         1.13                          
Miscellaneous expenses 2.88                           2.34                          
Total 36.11                         32.88

Note:

20 LOAN LOSSES AND PROVISIONS

₹ in Million

Particulars
 Year ended

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended

March 31, 2023 

Contingent provision on standard assets 0.02                          (0.27)                         
Provision for doubtful advances (financing activity) (4.38)                         (15.79)                       
Bad debts written off* 25.06                        10.36                        
Total 20.70                        (5.70)                         

21 Earnings per share (EPS)

₹ in Million

Particulars
 Year ended

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended

March 31, 2023 
Basic EPS
Net profit / (loss) for the year (86.01)                       (24.39)                       
Weighted average number of equity shares – for Basic EPS 3,38,51,319 3,38,51,319
Par value per share 10 10
Earnings per share – Basic (2.54)                         (0.72)                         

Diluted EPS
Net Profit / (loss) considered for basic EPS calculation (86.01)                       (24.39)                       
Weighted average number of equity shares – for Basic EPS 3,38,51,319 3,38,51,319
Add: Weighted number of equity shares under options 64,676 5,21,874

Add: Weighted number of equity shares under Compulsorily 
Convertible Preference Shares

95,98,513 95,98,513

Weighted average number of diluted equity shares 4,35,14,508 4,39,71,706

Nominal value per equity share 10 10
Earning per equity share - Diluted* (2.54)                         (0.72)                         

Since the impact of conversion of potential equity shares is anti-dilutive in nature, the same has not been
considered in the calculation of diluted EPS.

The following is a computation of earnings per share and a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the 
computation of basic and diluted earnings per equity share.

The provisions with respect to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are not applicable 
to the Company.

*Note-
The company had previously recognised retention commission payable to BC partners. During the year, a
reversal of these payables amounting to Rs. 10.20 Million was made against bad debts written off. This
adjustment was due to termination of contracts with BC partners which resulted in non payment of these
commissions.
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22.
₹ in Million

 Year ended
March 31, 2024 

 Year ended
March 31, 2023 

₹ ₹

(i) Contingent liabilities
(a) Dividend payable on compulsorily convertible preference shares                      0.005                     0.004 
(b) Income tax dispute (Appeal pending at ITAT)                      28.09                     28.09 
(c) FD (Lien Mark to Satin Finserv Limited as LDC)                        2.14                       1.68 

(ii) Commitments
(a) Other commitments:

Loans sanctioned but not disbursed to the borrowers 2.40                       5.92                      

TOTAL 32.63                     35.70                    

23.

24. Employee benefit plans

(i) Defined benefit plans

₹ in Million
 Year ended

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended

March 31, 2023 
₹ ₹

Current service cost 1.21                       0.86                      
Interest cost 0.33                       0.23                      
Expected return on plan assets (0.15)                     (0.16)                    
Actuarial losses/(gains) 1.64                       0.82                      

3.04                       1.75                      

6.74 4.50
Fair value of plan assets 2.46 2.02
Net asset / (liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet (4.28)                     (2.47)                    

Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the year
Present value of the DBO at beginning of the year 4.50                       3.10                     
Current service cost 1.21                       0.86                     
Interest cost 0.33                       0.23                     
Actuarial losses/(gains) 1.62                       0.75                     
Benefit Paid (0.92)                     (0.44)                    
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 6.74                       4.50                     

Change in fair value of assets during the year
Plan assets at beginning of the year 2.17                       2.33                      
Actual company contributions 1.23                       0.04                      

Expected Return 0.15                       0.17                      
Benefits paid (0.92)                     (0.44)                    
Acturial Gain/(Loss) 0.02                       0.07                     
Plan assets at the end of the year 2.64                       2.17                     

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (Gain)/loss 1.52                       0.76                     
Experience adjustment on plan assets Gain/(loss) 0.02                       0.07                     

In addition, the Company is involved in other legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The Company’s
management does not reasonably expect that these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse
effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition.

Other assets include an amount of Rs 30.72 Million representing receivable from business associates (‘BAs’) towards loan collections made from
borrowers on behalf of the Company. The Company expects to recover the outstanding balances from the BA’s in due course. Based on
availability of documentation confirming collections by the BA’s from the Company’s borrowers, no change in the asset classification of the loans
given to the borrowers is considered necessary.

Present value of defined benefit obligation

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars

The Company offers the employee benefit schemes of Gratuity to its employees. Benefits payable to eligible employees of the company with
respect to gratuity, a defined benefit plan is accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date. Gratuity expense
has been included under Personnel expenses.

The following table sets out the funded status of defined benefit schemes and the amount recognised in the financial statements: 

Particulars

Components of employer expense

Total expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Net asset / (liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet



Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets)
Funds Managed by Insurer 100% 100%

Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 7.15% 7.36%
Salary escalation 8.00% 7.00%
Mortality tables IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)
Attrition
Ages:
25 and below 35.00% 30.70%
25 years to 35 years 35.00% 30.70%
35 years to 45 years 35.00% 30.70%
45 years to 55 years 35.00% 30.70%
55 and above 35.00% 30.70%

₹ in Million

Experience adjustments
Present value 

of DBO
Fair value of 
plan assets

Experience (gain)/
loss adjustments 
on plan liabilities

Experience gain/
(loss) 

adjustments 
on plan assets

2015-16 -1 0.75                                                    0.45 0.01                       0.00                     
2016-17 1.45                                                    1.54 (0.08)                     0.12                     
2017-18 0.92                                                    2.65 0.90                       0.01                     
2018-19 1.60                                                    2.84 (0.26)                     0.04                     
2019-20 2.51                                                    3.05 (0.37)                     0.04                     
2020-21 2.21                                                    2.34 (0.24)                     0.17                     
2021-22 3.10                                                    2.33 0.31                       (0.07)                    
2022-23 4.50                                                    2.17 0.76                       (0.07)                    
2023-24 6.74                                                    2.64 1.52                       (0.02)                    

25 Segment Reporting

26.

 ₹ in Million 
 Year ended

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended

March 31, 2023 

₹ ₹
                       7.53                       6.46 

27. Related party transactions

(a) Details of related parties:

Description of relationship

Brother of Whole Time Director & CEO Mr. Bidhan Banerjee

Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Prashant Banerjee Whole Time Director & Chief Executive Officer
Mrs. Meenakshi Dholwani - Chief Financial Officer
Mrs. Megha Vivek Mohunta- Company Secretary

Names of related parties

The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e financing which has similar risks and profits for the purpose of AS-17 on Segment
Reporting. The Company operates in single geographical segment i.e domestic.

Operating Leases

Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss [Refer to Note 19]

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for office premises. 

The names of related parties of the Company as required to be disclosed under Accounting Standard 18 is as follows:

The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that
of the liabilities & the salary growth rate takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on long term basis. 

Particulars



(b)

₹ in Million
 Year ended

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended

March 31, 2023 

₹ ₹
I) Transactions during the year

a) 3.00                       -                       
0.20                       -                       
0.63                       -                       

b)
Key Managerial Personnel #

Mr. Prashant Banerjee 7.99 7.71                      
Mrs. Meenakshi Dholwani 5.02                       4.06 
Mrs. Megha Vivek Mohunta 4.11                       3.22 

28.

Vesting Condition

 
Other information with respect to the plan is as follows:

Exercise period
4 years from date of 
respective vesting

Vesting conditions
Employee to be in 
service at the time of 
vesting

Weighted average exercise price 
per option (Rs.)

7.71

Weighted average fair value of 
each option (Rs.)

4.01

Reconciliation of options:

Particulars
 Year ended

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended

March 31, 2023 
Options outstanding at the
beginning of the year

                       5,21,874                               24,527 

Granted during the year                           64,676                            4,97,347 
Forfeited during the year (5,21,874)                   -    
Exercised during the year   -      -    
Expired during the year   -      -    
Outstanding at the end of the
year

                          64,676                            5,21,874 

Exercisable at the end of the
year

                                 -                                        -   

Details of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2023 and outstanding balance as at March 31, 2023:

Particulars

Disclosures on Employee share based payments

- Interest paid during the year
Loan Availed from Mr. Bidhan Banerjee

* For other Employees

a) The options granted shall vest after the expiry of one year. There shall be a minimum period of 1 year between Grant of Options and its first 
vesting date.

b) Vesting schedule shall be as follows –

b) The options which did not get vested due to performance criteria will get lapsed from the hands of the Employee.

* For Prashant Banerjee

a) The options granted shall vest over a period of two years. There shall be a minimum period of 1 year between Grant of Options and its first 
vesting date. Vesting of options is subject to the loyalty and performance in the manner as specified under Vesting schedule mentioned below-

 Remuneration paid*

- Principal repaid during the year

In April, 2023 the Company’s Board of Directors approved an Employee Stock Option Plan whereby common stock are reserved for issuance to
eligible employees of the Company. Under the plan, options are to be granted to the employees as and when advised by the
Board/Compensation Committee constituted for the purpose. The Option are to be isued to the Employees wherein Equity Shares shall be issued
at par or a higher price (“Exercise Price”) as determined by the Board.

Year Loyalty (60%) Performance (40%)
1st 868,997.00 434,498.00
2nd 434,498.00 434,498.00
Total 1,303,495.00 868,996.00

Year No. of Shares
1st 1,000.00
Total 1,000.00



29.

30. The code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to the employee benefits during the employment and post-employment benefits received
Presidential assent in September 2020, The code has been published in Gazette of India. However, the date on which code will come into effect
has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The company will assess the impact of the code when it comes
into effect and will record any related impact in the period the code becomes effective.

During the current year, the company has paid Rs.0.21 MN as Director's Sitting Fee in foreign currency after witholding TDS as per the relevant 
section of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
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31

32

33

34
The company does not hold any Immovable Property.

35

Type of Borrower

Promoters
Director
KMPs
Related Parties

36

37

38

39

Balance 
outstanding

40

41

Not Applicable.

Borrowing on the basis of security of Current Assets,
a) Whether quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts?
During the FY 2023-24, the company does not have any secured loans. Unsecured loan of Rs. 30,00,000 was received by the company from Mr. Bidhan Banerjee for 24 months at
the rate 16% per annum on 05-10-2023 of which Rs. 23,75,000 is outstanding as on 31-03-2024 (Loans and Advances - Current & Non Current).
b) If not, summary of reconciliation and reasons of material discrepancies, if any to be adequately disclosed.
Not Applicable

Trade Receivables- categorised under the heading non-current & current assets
The company does not have Trade Receivble.

The company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions and others for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date and the
same has been deployed for company's own book lending.

If, in the opinion of the Board, any of the assets other than PPE and Intangible Assets and non-current investments do not have a value on realisation in the ordinary
course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated, the fact that the Board is of the that opinion, shall be stated.
Not Applicable

Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company,

Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) either severally or jointly
with any other person, that are:
a) repayable on demand or 
b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

Amount of loan or advance in the nature of 
loan outstanding

Percentage to the total 
Loans and Advances in 
the nature of loans

Not Applicable. The Company has not granted any loans to promoters,
directors, KMPs and the related parties during the current reporting year

Details of Benami Property held
The Company does not hold any Benami Property.

Wilful Defaulter*
Where a company is a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender, following details shall be given:
a) Date of declaration as wilful defaulter, 
b) Details of defaults (amount and nature of defaults)
* “wilful defaulter” here means a person or an issuer who or which is categorized as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Act) or consortium

thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

Not Applicable. The company has not been declared or categorized Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof.

Relationship with Struck off Companies:

Nature of transactions with struck-off Company Name of struck off Company
Relationship with the Struck off company, if any, to be 

disclosed

Investments in securities

Not Applicable.
The Company does not have any relations with Struck Off Companies

Receivables
Payable
Shares held by Struck Off Company

Other Outstanding Balance
(To be Specified)

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies:
Where any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period, details and reasons thereof shall be disclosed.
No New Charges registered during the period.

Compliance with number of layers of companies:
Where the company has not complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017, the name and CIN of the companies beyond the specified layers and the relationship/extent of holding of the company in such downstream companies shall be disclosed.



42 Ratios:

Ratio Numerator Denominator 2023-24 2022-23 Change (%)
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 2.91        4.87                 -40.33%
Debt Equity Ratio Total Borrowings Shareholder's Fund 0.01        -                  100.00%
Debt Service Coverage 
Ratio

EBITDA Debt Serviced (Prin+Int)
(98.96)    (0.05)               216926.25%

Return on Equity Ratio Profit After Tax Shareholder's Fund (0.35)      (0.07)               380.83%

Inventory turnover ratio
Trade Receivables 
turnover ratio
Trade payables turnover 
ratio
Net capital turnover ratio Turnover Average Working Capital (CA-CL)1.03        1.26                 -18.23%

Net profit ratio Profit After Tax Revenue from Operation (1.40)      (0.41)               245.58%
Return on Capital 
employed

EBIT Tangible Net Worth + 
Total Debt+ DTL -35.39% -6.10% 479.92%

Return on investment Profit from Investment Average Investment 5.58% 5.23% 6.67%

43

Not Applicable. There is no such scheme of arrangements.

44 Utilisation of Borrowed Funds and Share Premium:
During the FY 2023-24, there was no capital infused and borrowings were utilised for the intended purpose.

45 Undisclosed Income:
Not Applicable. The company has not disclosed or surrendered as unrecorded during the financial year 2023-24.

46 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is Not Applicable to the Company.

47 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
Not Applicable. The Company has not invested in or traded in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year 2023-24.

Other Statutory Disclosure:

Loans Repaid in last Financial Year
Due to loans written off and increase in employee benefit 
expenses.

Not Applicable. The company being Housing Finance Company, is not applicable.

Loan Availed of Rs. 3 Millions

Remarks

Repayment of short term loans and advances.

Not Applicable. The company being Housing Finance Company, is not applicable.

Not Applicable. The company being Housing Finance Company, is not applicable.

The Company has been maintaining its books of accounts in the METIS software, which has feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each 
change made in books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled, throughout the year as required by 
proviso to sub rule (1) of rule 3 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 known as the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2021.

Due to loans written off and increase in employee benefit 
expenses.

Due to loans written off and increase in employee benefit 
expenses.

Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements:
Where any Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company shall disclose that the
effect of such Scheme of Arrangements have been accounted for in the books of account of the Company ‘in accordance with the Scheme’ and ‘in accordance with accounting
standards’ and deviation in this regard shall be explained.

Repayment of short term loans and advances.



Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
CIN: U65922MH2009PTC331333

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

48.

48.1 Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)

Current Year Previous 
Year

111.60% 102.64%
111.38% 102.50%

0.22% 0.14%
-                            -              
-                            -              

48.1.1 Principal Business Criteria (In terms of Paragraph 4.1.17. Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021)

Current Year (%) Previous 
Year (%)

61.56% 63.99%
Total Housing Loan Outstanding (₹ in Million) 216.33                       299.43         
Total Assets (Netted off by Intangible Assets) (₹ in Million) 351.43                       467.96         

61.56% 63.99%

48.2  Disclosure regarding Reserve fund under Section 29C of NHB Act, 1987 as per NHB Circular dated April 7, 2014.
₹ in Million

Current Year Previous Year

24.63                         24.63           
-                            -               

c) Total                          24.63            24.63 

                              -   -               
                              -   -               
                              -   -               
                              -   -               

                         24.63            24.63 
                              -                   -   
                         24.63            24.63 

48.3 Investments
₹ in Million

Current Year Previous 

3.5.1. Value of Investments
i) Gross Value of Investments
 (a) In India -                            11.57           
 (a) Outside India -                            -               
ii) Provision for Depreciation
 (a) In India -                            -               
 (a) Outside India -                            -               
iii) Net Value of Investments
 (a) In India -                            11.57           
 (a) Outside India -                            -               
3.5.2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
i) Opening balance -                            -               
ii) Add: Provisions made during the year -                            -               
iii) Less: Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions during the year -                            -               
iv) Closing balance -                            -               

48.4 Derivatives
The Company has not entered into derivative / forward rate agreements / interest rate swaps/ exchange traded interest rate derivates during the current year or previous year.

48.5
The Company has not entered into any securitization transaction during the current year or previous year.

48.6
The Company has not entered into any securitization transaction during the current year or previous year.

48.7
The Company has not entered into any assignment transaction during the current year or previous year.

48.8 Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold
The Company has not purchased  / sold any non-performing financial assets during the current or previous year.

48.9 Exposure

48.9.1  Exposures to real estate sector
₹ in Million

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
a) Direct exposure

213.87                       298.35         
-                            -               

54.03                         58.73           

-                            -               
-                            -               

b) Indirect Exposure
-                            -               

Additional disclosures as required in terms of Housing Finance Companies – Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2019, as amended

Particulars

i) CRAR (%)
ii) CRAR - Tier I capital (%)
iii) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%)
iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital

Add: a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB 

Less: a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
b) Amount withdrawn from special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 which has been taken into account for the purposes of provisions u/s 29C of 

Balance at the end of the year
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments

Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 
c) Total

Particulars

Securitisation 

Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

Details of Assignment transactions

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs).

(i)   Residential Mortgages –
Housing loans up to Rs. 15 lakhs
Housing loans more than Rs. 15 lakhs
Non Housing Loans

(ii)    Commercial Real Estate –
(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -

Particulars

 a) Percentage of housing finance to total assets (netted off by intangible assets)

b) Percentage of housing finance for individuals to total assets (netted off by intangible assets)



48.9.2.a Exposure to Capital Market
The Company does not have any exposure to capital markets.

48.9.2.b Sectoral Exposure

Total Exposure Gross NPAs

Percentage of Gross 
NPAs to total 

exposure in that 
sector

Total Exposure Gross NPAs

Percentage 
of Gross 
NPAs to 

total 
exposure in 
that sector

                                                          -                                                                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                   -   
                                                          -                                                                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                   -   

                                                          -                                                                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                   -   
                                                          -                                                                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                   -   
                                                          -                                                                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                   -   
                                                          -                                                                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                   -   

                                                          -                                                                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                   -   
                                                          -                                                                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                   -   
                                                          -                                                                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                   -   
                                                          -                                                                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                   -   

                                                   213.87                                                                        136.37 63.76%                        298.35 216.31                       72.50%

                                                    54.03                                                                         17.28 31.98%                          58.73 
29.60                         

50.40%

                                                          -                                                                                 -   

                                                   267.90                                                                        153.65 57.35%                        357.07                        245.91 68.87%

                                                          -                                                                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                   -   
                                                          -                                                                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                   -   

Current Year Previous Year

i… If any, Please specify 

Sectors

1. Agriculture and Allied 
Activities

2. Industry
i…
ii…
Others
Total of industry (i.+ ii.+ Other)

3. Services
i…
ii…
Others
Total of Services (i.+ ii.+ Other)

4. Personal Loans
i. Housing Loan to Individuals
ii. Non - Housing Loan to 
Individuals
iii. Others

Total of Personal Loans (i.+ ii.+ 
Other)

Others



48.9.3 Details of financing of parent company products
There are no such instances.

48.9.4 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the HFC
During the year, the Company has not exceeded SGL & GBL limits as prescribed under the NHB Directions.

48.9.5 Unsecured Advances
Refer Note 10.

48. 10 Miscellaneous

48.10.1

48.10.2

48.10.3
Refer note 27 for transactions with related party transactions.

48.10.4
Current year: CARE B; Stable (Single B; Outlook: Stable)        (Previous year: CARE B, Oulook : "Stable")

48.10.5

48.10.6 Drawdown from reserves
The Company has not drawn any amount from reserves during the year.

48.10.7 The Company has not granted loans against security of gold / gold jewellery during the year.

48.10.8 Unhedged FC Exposure
The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure during the year.

48.11 Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account ₹ in Million
Current Year Previous Year

-                            -               
-                            -               

(4.38)                         (15.79)         
0.02                          (0.27)           

(4.14)                         1.13            

48.12 Break up of Loan & Advances and Provisions thereon ₹ in Million

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

77.50                         82.04                         36.75                         29.13           
0.31                           0.33                           0.15                           0.12             

15.80                         46.22                         2.71                           7.84             
2.37                           6.93                           0.41                           1.18             
-                            

20.71                         51.66                         3.03                           7.99             
5.18                           12.91                         0.76                           2.00             
-                            

72.10                         118.44                       8.88                           13.78           
28.84                         47.38                         3.55                           5.51             

-                            
-                            -                            -                            -               
-                            -                            -                            -               

27.76                         -                            2.66                           -               
27.76                         -                            2.66                           -               

213.87                       298.35                       54.03                         58.73           
64.46                         67.55                         7.52                           8.80             

48.13 Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

48.13.1 Concentration of Public Deposits (for Public Deposit taking/holding HFCs)
The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the current or previous year.

48.13.2 Concentration of Loans & Advances
₹ in Million

Current Year Previous Year
11.77                         11.03           
4.39% 3.09%

48.13.3 Concentration of all Exposure (including off-balance sheet exposure)
₹ in Million

Current Year Previous Year
11.77                         11.03           
4.39% 3.09%

48.13.4 Concentration of NPAs
₹ in Million

Current Year Previous Year
4.57                           4.79             

48.13.5 Sector-wise NPAs (As certified by the management and relied upon by auditors)

Sr No. Sector
Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in that 

sector
A. Housing Loans:

1 Individuals 63.76%
2 Builders/Project Loans
3 Corporates
4 Others (specify)

B. Non-Housing Loans:
1 Individuals 31.98%
2 Builders/Project Loans
3 Corporates
4 Others (specify)

Company Identification no. (CIN) : U65922MH2009PTC331333

Disclosure of Penalties imposed by NHB and other regulators
During the year ended March 31st 2024, no penalty has been levied by NHB on the Company.

Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

2. Provision towards income tax
3. Provision towards non-performing assets
4. Contingent provision towards standard assets
5. Provisions towards other assets and advances

Particulars Housing loans

2.3 Related Party Transactions

Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year
Long term Bank facilities

Remuneration of Directors (Non-executive) - Refer Note 27

Particulars
1. Provision for depreciation on investments

b) Provisions made
Doubtful Assets – Category-I
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provisions made
Doubtful Assets – Category-II
a) Total Outstanding Amount

Non Housing loans

Standard Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provisions made
Sub-Standard Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount

b) Provisions made
Total
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provisions made

Particulars
Total Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers

b) Provisions made
Doubtful Assets – Category-III
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provisions made
Loss Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount

Percentage of Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the Company

Particulars
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers /Customers
Percentage of Exposure to twenty largest borrowers to Total Exposure of the Company

Particulars
Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts



48.13.6 Movement of NPAs
 ₹ in Million

Current Year Previous Year
41.07% 60.15%

245.91                       327.89         
6.52                          15.39           

(98.78)                       (97.36)         
153.65                       245.91         

170.01                       236.19         
4.95                          13.05           

(92.83)                       87.92           
82.13                        170.01         

75.91                        91.69           
1.57                          2.34            

(5.95)                         (18.12)         
71.52                        75.91           

48.14 Overseas Assets
Nil. (March 31, 2023: Nil)

48.15 Off-balance  Sheet  SPVs  sponsored
 

Overseas    
None  

48.16
 

 Current Year Previous Year
-                            -              

1 2
1 2

-                            -              

49.

50. Figures for previous year have been regrouped and/or reclassified wherever considered necessary, to conform to current year classifications.

For Kantilal Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants Swarna Pragati Housing Microfinance Private Limited
ICAI Firm Reg No. 104744W

Sd/- Sd/-
Sd/- Mukul Gulati Prashant Banerjee
CA. Jinal Patel Director Director & Chief Executive Officer
Partner  DIN No. 00746183 DIN No. 09786756
Membership No. 153599 Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Place: Ahmedabad Date: July 31, 2024 Date: July 31, 2024
Date: July 31, 2024

Sd/- Sd/-
Meenakshi Dholwani Megha Mohunta
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Bangalore Membership No. F 10009
Date: July 31, 2024 Place: Nagpur

Date: July 31, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Particulars
(I) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)
(II)  Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a)  Opening balance
b)  Additions during the year
c)  Reductions during the year

c)  No. of complaints redressed during the year
d)  No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

During the year, there were 5 instances amouting to Rs. 0.44 Million involving cash embezzlement by the employees of the Company. Further, such instances have been referred to statutory authorities for further
investigation. The Company has fully provided for the outstanding exposure as at March 31, 2024.

d)Closing balance

Name of the SPV sponsored

 Disclosure of customer complaints (As certified by the management and relied upon by auditors)

Particulars
a)  No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year
b)  No. of complaints received during the year

d)Closing balance

(IV) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
a)Opening balance
b)Provisions made during the year
c)Write-off/write-back of excess provisions

d)  Closing balance

(III) Movement of Net NPAs
a)Opening balance
b)Additions during the year
c)Reductions during the year

Domestic
None
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